
       PRESCOTT CITY COUNCIL 
  COMBINED STUDY SESSION/REGULAR   
       VOTING MEETING 
  TUESDAY, OCTOBER 14, 2008  
  PRESCOTT, ARIZONA 
 
MINUTES OF THE COMBINED STUDY SESSION/REGULAR VOTING MEETING OF 
THE PRESCOTT CITY COUNCIL held on OCTOBER 14, 2008 in the COUNCIL 
CHAMBERS located at CITY HALL, 201 SOUTH CORTEZ STREET, Prescott, Arizona. 
   

  CALL TO ORDER 
    
 Mayor Wilson called the meeting to order at 3:01 p.m. 
 

 INTRODUCTIONS  
 

 INVOCATION: Father John Peck, Prescott Orthodox Christian Church 
 

Father Peck gave the invocation. 
 

  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Councilman Lamerson 
 
 Councilman Lamerson led the Council and audience in the Pledge of Alliegance. 
 

  ROLL CALL:    
 
  COUNCIL PRESENT:    ABSENT: 
  

Mayor Wilson     Councilman Roecker 
Councilman Bell    
Councilman Lamerson   
Councilwoman Lopas 
Councilman Luzius 
Councilwoman Suttles 

 
 Mayor Wilson said that due to schedules of visitors attending the meeting, Item 

III-A would be discussed first. 
 
 A. Presentation of check by the Economic Development Administration 

(EDA) to Embry-Riddle Aeronautical University in support of their 
Technology Park Development Project. 

    
 Economic Development Director Jane Bristol introduced the item, stating 

that it was formal presentation of a check from the US Economic 
Development Administration to Embry-Riddle Aeronautics University 
(ERAU) for $1.9 million in support of their Technology Park Development 



Prescott City Council Combined Study Session/ 
Regular Voting Meeting – October 14, 2008                                                   Page 2 
 

project. She said it is a recognition and celebration of the cooperative 
efforts between ERAU and the City of Prescott and she recognized the 
efforts of Councilman Lamerson for his participation in numerous meetings 
to bring attention to the need, and in addition, Councilman Luzius in his 
capacity as Prescott’s representative to NACOG (Northern Arizona 
Council of Governments), as well as the Mayor. 

    
 She said that the grant award was made possible by NACOG who 

approves applications prior to submission to the EDA and she recognized 
and thanked the Regional Council for their support of the project, and 
asked any that were present to come forward. 

    
 She also recognized the Business Park Development Team and asked 

them to come forward, Terry Drew (Regional Director of NACOG), Ken 
Sweet (Executive Director of NACOG), Jacob Macias, Economic 
Development Representative of the Seattle Region Office of EDA, and 
Michael Willinger, Project Director and Director of Business and Finance 
for ERAU in Prescott. 

    
 Mayor Wilson said that Prescott has a long history of working 

cooperatively with ERAU. In many ways, ERAU is an overlooked gem 
Prescott, and he then asked the current Chancellor of ERAU, Dan Carroll, 
to come forward. 

    
 Chancellor Carroll said that it was a great day for ERAU and the 

community. There are several people to be thanked for getting to where 
they are, beginning with the Mayor and Council. He said that it has been a 
long relationship that they have found appropriate for both sides and very 
worthwhile. He thanked Virginia Turner and Governor Napolitano for their 
support in Northern Arizona, and Max Crow from the US Department of 
Commerce, and he gave a special thanks to Jane Bristol from the City for 
her untiring efforts to make it happen. He also thanked Terry Drew and 
Ken Sweet of NACOG and Jacob Macias from EDA.  He said that if they 
look forward to the EDA funding project, they will find a project that will be 
a catalyst for economic growth for ERAU as well as for the community.  
He said there is no doubt that the park will further the mission and vision 
of the University as well as provide a unique business environment for 
both campus and community. 

 
 Looking at going forward, he said they anticipate the kind of businesses 

that will bring great jobs, with a park that will be sustainable and lead 
technology. Overall it is a project that they will look on in future years and 
say they are fortunate to have it. From ERAU, they are thankful to all for 
their support.    

 Mayor Wilson said that he spent two full days at ERAU during a focus 
group where they did world café brainstorming and he went back out to 



Prescott City Council Combined Study Session/ 
Regular Voting Meeting – October 14, 2008                                                   Page 3 
 

talk with their design team. He then invited Virginia Turner, Governor 
Napolitano’s Northern Arizona representative, to make a few remarks. 

 
Ms. Turner said she was very pleased to join them on behalf of Governor 
Napolitano, who had asked her to extend her congratulations to ERAU, 
the City of Prescott, NACOG and the U.S. Department of Commerce 
Economic Development Agency for raising the funds to move ERAU 
Business Technology Park forward.   
    
Matthew Crow, Deputy Assistant Secretary for the U.S. Department of 
Commerce Economic Development Administration, addressed the 
audience and thanked the hospitality of the Mayor and Council and 
thanked everyone for coming. He said that the only way that the country 
will compete in the 21st century economy is by being competitive, 
innovative and entrepreneurial and that is why the Commerce Department 
gave the grant to ERAU. He said that China, India, Malaysia, Russia all 
have similar structures, but the one thing they lack is the support of the 
community and the business community in those regions where they have 
their incubators and tech parks. He said that it is huge credit to the Mayor 
and Council, citizens, leadership at ERAU, that they receive the grant 
because the competition for Federal dollars is fierce. After a few more 
comments he then presented a check to Chancellor Carroll of ERAU. 
 
Chancellor Carroll also recognized immediate past Chancellor Pohl who 
was in the audience. 

 
   SUMMARY OF CURRENT OR RECENT EVENTS  

    
 Mr. Norwood reported that they had nearly 500 cars show up for the annual 

Household Hazardous Waste Day at the transfer station last weekend. He said 
that although he was not present today, he wanted to thank Councilman Roecker 
for his help. He said this is a very successful program and involves regional 
cooperation among the area cities. 

 
  Councilman Luzius reported that he attended Casa Blanca that showed over the 

weekend at the Elks Theater, and although it was not completely full it was a 
great afternoon.   

 
I. PUBLIC COMMENT (Please limit your comments to five minutes) 
  
 A. Sam Webb re Boys Scouts of America activities in Prescott. 
 
  Sam Webb, District Executive of Boy Scouts of American, gave a 

presentation to the Council and public on their activities in the Prescott 
area. 

 



Prescott City Council Combined Study Session/ 
Regular Voting Meeting – October 14, 2008                                                   Page 4 
 
 B. Tammy Linn re Building Prescott Park One Tile at a Time in Suchitoto, 

El Salvador. 
  
  Tammy Linn gave a presentation on the Building Prescott Park One Tile at 

a Time project in Suchitoto, El Salvador. She then introduced Tracy 
Williams, owner of Ace’s Painting Place, located at 404 W. Goodwin, who 
is working with Tammy and provides the tiles at a reduced rate, and 
paint/firing, and also assists with the credit card payments. 

 
II. PROCLAMATIONS 
 

A. October 2008 – United  Way of Yavapai County Month 
 

Councilman Bell read the proclamation proclaiming October 2008 as 
United Way of Yavapai County Month, and presented it to Mike Whiting, 
Executive Director, and Don Schaeffer. 

    
B. October 18, 2008 – American Diabetes Association’s Americans Step Out 

to Fight Diabetes Day in Prescott 
 

Councilwoman Lopas read the proclamation proclaiming October 18, 2008 
as American Diabetes Association’s Americans Step out to Fight Diabetes 
Day in Prescott, and presented it to Nancy Wahl, Chairman of the Walk 
this year.  Ms. Wahl gave some information on the walk which was taking 
place on October 18.  She said that people could register the morning of 
the race, or they could register prior to the race on line at 
www.diabetes.org/stepout.     

 
III. PRESENTATIONS 
 
 B. Presentation of G.E.M. (Going the Extra Mile) Award. 
 
  Mr. Norwood explained that the GEM Award was part of the City’s 

employee program and was generated from the Raving Fan Award for 
customer service. He said that they don’t give the award out very often; 
this is only the second one, with the first going to Tim Burkeen.     

 
  Mr. Norwood said that it is something they take serious and someone has 

to really go the “extra mile” to be considered. He then presented the award 
to Becky Garvin for her work as Special Events Coordinator. He said that 
when a person in charge of the types of events held by Prescott, it has to 
be done professionally and Ms. Garvin has conveyed that in her work.  
Ms. Garvin thanked Mr. Norwood and the Council for the award. 

  
 
 

http://www.diabetes.org/stepout


Prescott City Council Combined Study Session/ 
Regular Voting Meeting – October 14, 2008                                                   Page 5 
 

C. Presentation by Kim Haddow as Captain of the U.S. Golf Team at World 
University Games in South Africa. 

    
Paul Parker, Manager of the Antelope Hills Golf Course, introduced Kim 
Haddow, a teaching professional at the golf course, which he said the City 
is very fortunate to have. She is a long-time member of the LPGA, 
coached women’s college golf at the University of Arizona and University 
of Florida and is a member of the College Coaches Hall of Fame. This 
past summer she was selected to serve as Captain of the Women’s USA 
Team in the World University Games held in South Africa, and they 
brought home the Gold Medal. She is not only a great ambassador for 
Antelope Hills, but also for the City of Prescott. 

    
  Ms. Haddow thanked the Council for the opportunity to share about her 

trip, and also the City, Paul Parker and all the staff at Antelope Hills for 
their support over the last three years.   

 
  Ms. Haddow then gave a PowerPoint presentation that outlined their trip.  

She said that one thing she heard over and over during the trip from 
others involved was what a great nation the USA was. She said that the 
Women’s Team won the Gold Medal and the Japanese Men took the 
Gold.   

 
 D. Presentation of the Open Space Master Plan by members of the Open 

Space Acquisition Committee. 
    
  Michael Byrd, Co-Chairman of the Open Space Acquisition Committee 

gave a PowerPoint presentation on the Open Space Master Plan, which 
covered the following items: 

     
  MP Development 
    

OSAAC Members 
    

OSAAC Liaisons 
    

History of OSAAC 
    

Priority Areas for Acquisition 
    

Acquisitions 
      

Open Space Values 
    

Characteristics 



Prescott City Council Combined Study Session/ 
Regular Voting Meeting – October 14, 2008                                                   Page 6 
 

    
Acquisition Strategies 

    
Plan Components 

    
Plan Recommendations 

 Adopt plan 
 Replace committee with a permanent Open Space Commission 
 Establish Open Space Foundaiton 
 Review and revise ordinances to increase incentives 
 Conduct anyalysis of cost v. benefit of PDR and TDC programs 
 Review and update the OSMP within five years 
    

Community Feedback 
      
  Questions 
    
  Councilwoman Suttles said that it was an outstanding report and she 

thanked the group for their work. Mayor Wilson also thanked the entire 
committee, noting that he attended several of the meetings and a lot of 
work went into the plan. All members of the committee were then asked to 
stand up. 

    
  Councilman Lamerson said that he, too, compliments the committee on 

the report. He also thanked Mr. Byrd for his comments on the sensitivity to 
budget constraints and his understanding of the ballot analysis.  
Councilman Luzius also thanked the group for their work and for their 
picture of Badger P Mountain. 

    
  Councilwoman Lopas said that since she was the former chair of the 

committee, she knows how hard everyone worked on the plan  She said 
that she was very proud of each and every member of the committee. 

  
  Mr. Norwood said that this will be shared with the other boards/ 

commissions and staff will incorporate the comments and findings into the 
General Plan. He said that there may be some things specific that have to 
come before the Council for action, such as the creation of a commission. 

     
  Mr. Byrd said that one thing he did omit was that as the plan was in draft 

form it was taken to the Planning and Zoning Commission and he and 
Debbie Horton also talked of taking it to the Parks and Recreation Board, 
although at that time that Board were just getting started.   

 
  Council agreed that they should move forward with the Plan and take 

whatever specific action before Council needed to be taken. 
 



Prescott City Council Combined Study Session/ 
Regular Voting Meeting – October 14, 2008                                                   Page 7 
 
 
IV. REGULAR AGENDA 

 
A. Public Hearing and consideration of a liquor license application submitted 

by Robert John Elia, applicant for Ariva LLC, for a Series 07, Beer & Wine 
Bar, license for Papa’s Italian Restaurant located at 1124 White Spar 
Road. 

   
 Ms. Burke said that this was a new license for an existing business, due to 

change in ownership. The property had been posted as required by State 
Statutes, and no public comments had been received. The applicant’s 
wife, Donna Alia, addressed the Council stating that they purchased 
Papa’s six weeks ago and she and her husband and their daughter and 
son-in-law, along with their 4-year old grandson are running the business. 
They are very happy and excited to be a part of the community. She said 
that they came from Tucson where they also had the Contessa Italian 
Buffet.   

    
 Councilman Bell welcomed them to Prescott and asked if they were 

planning to be open for lunch. Ms. Alia said that they are looking to do 
that in the future. 

  
 COUNCILWOMAN SUTTLES MOVED TO CLOSE THE PUBLIC 

HEARING; SECONDED BY COUNCILMAN BELL; PASSED 
UNANIMOUSLY. 

 
 COUNCILMAN BELL MOVED TO APPROVE THE LIQUOR LICENSE 

APPLICATION SUBMITTED BY ROBERT JOHN ELIA, APPLICANT 
FOR ARIVA LLC, FOR A SERIES 07, BEER & WINE BAR, LICENSE 
FOR PAPA’S ITALIAN RESTAURANT LOCATED AT 1124 WHITE 
SPAR ROAD; SECONDED BY COUNCILMAN LUZIUS; PASSED 
UNANIMOUSLY. 

 
B. Approval to purchase and install one replacement HVAC unit and two 

replacement heating units for the Prescott Police Department from Energy 
Savings and Cooling in the total amount of $21,510.00. 

    
 Mr. Fenech said that during a scheduled preventative maintenance 

inspection, three HVAC units at the Police Department building were red-
tagged for excessive carbon monoxide readings. Three bids were 
received and opened, and staff was recommending the units be 
purchased through Energy Savings & Cooling. 

 
 Councilman Lamerson asked if they could get some heating in the Council 

Chambers.  Mr. Fenech explained that the City Hall system takes two 



Prescott City Council Combined Study Session/ 
Regular Voting Meeting – October 14, 2008                                                   Page 8 
 

days to get up and running once they switch over from cooling to heating 
and as they were expecting a heat wave, they had held off on starting up 
the heat. 

    
 Councilman Lamerson said that it looks like they have a health issue and 

really do not have a choice. 
   
 COUNCILMAN LUZIUS MOVED TO APPROVE THE PURCHASE OF 

ONE HVAC UNIT AND TWO HEATING UNITS FROM ENERGY 
SAVINGS AND COOLING IN THE TOTAL AMOUNT OF $21,510.00; 
SECONDED BY COUNCILMAN LAMERSON; PASSED 
UNANIMOUSLY. 

 
C. Approval of reimbursement in the amount of $54,317.97 to the Adult 

Center of Prescott, Inc. for audio-visual and security systems to the Rowle 
P. Simmons Community Center. 

    
 Parks and Recreation Director Debbie Horton said that when the Adult 

Center moved in to the new facility on Rosser Street, it was agreed that 
the City would reimburse them 50% of the cost of audio-visual system and 
one-third of the cost of the security system. This request is to reimburse 
the Adult Center for those expenses. 

   
 COUNCILMAN LUZIUS MOVED TO APPROVE REIUMBURSEMENT IN 

THE AMOUNT OF $54,317.97 TO THE ADULT CENTER OF 
PRESCOTT, INC. FOR AUDIO-VISUAL AND SECURITY SYSTEMS TO 
THE ROWLE P. SIMMONS COMMUNITY CENTER; SECONDED BY 
COUNCILMAN LAMERSON; PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 

 
D. Approval to purchase two 2009 Honda ST1300P A9 Motorcycles with 

emergency equipment from North Valley Motorsports, Inc., on the Arizona 
Department of Public Safety State Contract #L5-024-002 for the amount 
of $40,723.90. 

    
  Police Chief Randy Oaks said that the Police Department obtained a 

quote for two police equipped motorcycles from North Valley Motorsports, 
Inc. under the Arizona DPS contract #L5-024-002. He said that the two 
motorcycles being replaced are from 2001 and will replace units currently 
being used for training. He said that there is a safety component to this.  
They currently have four of these types of cycles and have seven officers 
on them. Three of the remaining cycles are Kawasaki that have not been 
manufactured since 2005 as a PD cycle. They failed to make 
modifications that others were doing to incorporate ABS systems, which is 
a lifesaving system. He said that this was in the budget last year when the 



Prescott City Council Combined Study Session/ 
Regular Voting Meeting – October 14, 2008                                                   Page 9 
 

vehicle funds were frozen and he would like to replace all three, but this 
will replace at least two of them. 

 
  Chief Oaks said that there are currently three different manufacturers of 

Police Department models with ABS and they are Honda, Harley-
Davidson and BMW. The Harley-Davidson cost more initially and the 
Honda and BMW are very comparable. He said that he just returned from 
a product show in Las Vegas where the City won Best of Show, for being 
the best equipped. He said that talked with a lot of vendors and officers at 
that show about motorcycles and was convinced that maintenance on a 
Honda is about 50% of maintenance on a BMW.   

      
  Councilwoman Suttles asked what would happen with the Kawasaki 

cycles being replaced. Chief Oaks said that they would be sold at auction. 
He said that it is a very limited market, but they are inexpensive cruising 
bikes for those interested. 

     
  Councilman Bell asked how long it would take for delivery. Chief Oaks 

said that the dealer in Ontario said they would arrive in January, and then 
there is time to have the additional equipment installed, so they should be 
ready in early Spring. 

   
  Councilman Luzius said that they have discussed before the need to buy 

American. He said that he has done some homework and Harley-
Davidson has several police models that offer ABS brakes. With the 
economic downturn, he thinks it is important to buy American, since they 
have a government that does not have much regard for the borders.  He 
would like to have that considered in the future. 

    
  Mayor Wilson said that he owned two Harleys when he was younger, but 

he supports the recommendation of the Chief 
    
  COUNCILWOMAN SUTTLES MOVED TO APPROVE THE PURCHASE 

OF TWO 2009 HONDA ST1300P A9 MOTORCYCLES WITH 
EMERGENCY EQUIPMENT FROM NORTH VALLEY MOTORSPORTS, 
INC., ON THE ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY STATE 
CONTRACT #L5-024-002 FOR THE AMOUNT OF $40,723.90; 
SECONDED BY COUNCILWOMAN LOPAS; PASSED 5-1 WITH 
COUNCILMAN LUZIUS CASTING THE DISSSENTING VOTE. 

 
E. Adoption of Resolution No. 3908-0914 – A resolution of the Mayor and 

Council of the City of Prescott, Yavapai County, Arizona, accepting the 
Special Land Use Permit No. 23-110915-03 provided by the State of 
Arizona, State Land Department, for the special use of Glassford Hill for 
public safety communication operations for a five-year period and 
authorizing the execution of any and all documents to implement same. 



Prescott City Council Combined Study Session/ 
Regular Voting Meeting – October 14, 2008                                                   Page 10 
 

    
 Emergency Services Director Darrell Willis said that this item is to extend 

the lease of property where the communications tower is located on 
Glassford Hill. He said that this site will continue to be used as the primary 
Fire Department communications site until the new Public Safety radio 
system is operational in 2009 and then it will become a back-up 
transmission site for both Police and Fire communications. 

    
 COUNCILMAN LUZIUS MOVED TO ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 3908-

0914; SECONDED BY COUNCILMAN LAMERSON; PASSED 
UNANIMOUSLY. 

 
F. Authorize amendment in the amount of $14,977.00 to the contract with 

Modular Solutions, Ltd. For TSA mandated modifications to the temporary 
terminal expansion unit procured under the emergency procurement 
provisions of the Procurement Code. 

    
 Airport Manager Ben Vardiman said that this amendment was due to 

additional requirements of the TSA for improvements at the temporary 
terminal expansion unit for security equipment. Due to the critical need of 
this equipment to function properly to preserve the health, welfare and 
safety of the public in the national air transportation system, the City 
authorized the work under the emergency procurement provisions of the 
City Procurement Code. The work has been completed and the Airport is 
bringing this change order before Council for authorization as required. 

    
 Councilwoman Suttles asked if this was something they had to do 

because of the new Horizon Airlines. Mr. Vardiman said that it was part of 
the redesign of the terminal which was prompted by Horizon Airlines; at 
the same time, it is also because they are dealing with a 60 year old 
building. 

    
 Councilman Luzius asked what the weight was of the scanning unit. 

Mr. Vardiman said that the walk-through metal detector is about 150 
pounds; the ex-ray machine is around 1,300 pounds, but the next 
generation which will come out next year will run around 3,000 pounds.  
Councilman Luzius said that he thought it was overkill but it was required 
to open the terminal.  Mr. Vardiman added that the concrete block was for 
the walk-through metal detector because it has to be on its own 
foundation. 

    
 Councilman Bell asked Mr. Vardiman if he was anticipating any more 

requirements from TSA that will cost the City money. He said that he 
heard that they were questioning the venting of the windows in the 
restaurant. Mr. Vardiman said that he has not heard that, and as far as he 
knows, there will be no more required. 



Prescott City Council Combined Study Session/ 
Regular Voting Meeting – October 14, 2008                                                   Page 11 
 

   
 COUNCILMAN LUZIUS MOVED TO AUTHORIZE AMENDMENT IN THE 

AMOUNT OF $14,977.00 TO THE CONTRACT WITH MODULAR 
SOLUTIONS, LTD. FOR TSA MANDATED MODIFICATIONS TO THE 
TEMPORARY TERMINAL EXPANSION UNIT PROCURED UNDER THE 
EMERGENCY PROCUREMENT PROVISIONS OF THE PROCURE-
MENT CODE; SECONDED BY COUNCILMAN LUZIUS; PASSED 
UNANIMOUSLY. 

 
G. Approval of a professional services contract with DMJM Harris in an 

amount not to exceed $129,300.00 for the Airport Area Transportation 
Plan. 

   
 Mr. Mattingly said that this item is for approval of a professional services 

agreement with DMJM Harris in association with Jacobs Engineering to 
address existing and future transportation planning within the Airport area. 
He then reviewed the study area 

   
Councilman Bell asked where DMJM Harris was located. Mr. Mattingly 
said that they are out of Phoenix and Jacobs in located in Prescott. He 
said that the scope of the project includes: scoping/stakeholder meetings; 
agency scoping; stakeholder coordination; traffic data collection/inventory 
existing studies; develop initial roadway alternatives; travel demand/ 
transportation modeling; refine alternatives/sub-area studies; final report. 
 
Councilman Bell asked if they took bids on the project. Mr. Mattingly said 
that it was handled through a direct-select method, done specifically to get 
the best results and most efficient use of City funds. He said that DMJM 
has an extensive history of working with the County and City in this area 
and Jacobs is responsible for the modeling on the 2030 Transportation 
Plan and has extensive knowledge of CYMPO efforts.  Additionally, they 
are doing the transportation modeling on the Cavan property. In this way, 
they have built in the expertise and knowledge so they do not have to 
recreate a lot of the data, which will save the City a lot of money and time. 

 
 Councilman Bell said that with the economy the way it is, he hates to send 

another $130,000 to Phoenix. He said that in both DMJM Harris and 
Jacobs he sees a Project Manager listed, and asked if they need two 
project managers. Mr. Mattingly said that Jenny Bigsby is the office 
manager in Phoenix for DMJM and she is project manager.  He said that 
while other firms may bring in a project manager on a study like this and 
use them on a limited basis, they are getting her to do most of the work.  
The same is true with Jacobs. He said that they are the best that the firms 
have to offer. 

     



Prescott City Council Combined Study Session/ 
Regular Voting Meeting – October 14, 2008                                                   Page 12 
 

 Councilman Bell said that reading through the scope of work there is quite 
a bit of work and it shows they will have four alternative plans. He asked if 
they did not have it tied down enough to not know which alternative they 
would use. Mr. Mattingly said that they will look at up to four alternative 
roadway networks and they will refine and get the best. They also need to 
coordinate with the terminal location, but they don’t know exactly where 
that will be at this point. The scope had to be written to allow some 
flexibility.   

 
 Councilman Bell asked if this was urgent. Mr. Mattingly said that it was, 

absolutely. He said that it brings together many agencies that have done 
studies. It is coming to a head, with the future developments, annexations, 
etc. and this is the heart of growth in the Prescott area. He said that it is 
on the fast track. 

   
 Councilwoman Suttles said that the estimated cost of the project is 

$129,300 but $150,000 was funded. She said that if this goes at $129,000 
and it comes back, she asked if they are still within the grace of the 
budgeted amount or if that amount was moved. Mr. Norwood said that the 
$21,000 would stay within that fund. They cannot exceed without 
additional authorization. Councilwoman Suttles asked what would happen 
if it comes back at $155,000; Mr. Norwood replied that it they would dip 
into the one percent fund.   

     
 Councilman Luzius asked if there was a possibility of obtaining Federal 

grants since it is related to the airport. Mr. Mattingly said that they could 
check on that, but this project is much larger than just the Airport; it is just 
in the Airport area. It really focuses on a regional roadway system. The 
location of the terminal is important, but that is being studied through the 
other study. At this point, they do not believe there is anything available. 

   
 COUNCILWOMAN LOPAS MOVED TO APPROVE A PROFESSIONAL 

SERVICES CONTRACT WITH DMJM HARRIS IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO 
EXCEED $129,300.00 FOR THE AIRPORT AREA TRANSPORTATION 
PLAN; SECONDED BY COUNCILWOMAN SUTTLES; PASSED 
UNANIMOUSLY. 

 
H. Approval to purchase aggregate materials from Asphalt Paving & Supply 

in an amount not to exceed $80,000.00 and from Charter Materials, 
Flintstone Industries and G&S Gravel, each in an amount not to exceed 
$7,000.00. 

    
 Mr. McDowell said that staff merged their efforts between Field 

Operations, Parks and Recreation and Utilities and solicited bids from 
local vendors for aggregate materials. By merging their requirements, 
they were able to obtain better pricing. He said that Asphalt Paving and 



Prescott City Council Combined Study Session/ 
Regular Voting Meeting – October 14, 2008                                                   Page 13 
 

Supply provided the City with the most successful bids and it is 
anticipated that at least $80,000 will be spent with them; Charter 
Materials, Flintstone Industries and G&S gravel were successful on the 
decorative rock, bedding material, river rock and rip rap, and it is 
anticipated that $20,000 will be spent with those vendors. 

    
 COUNCILMAN BELL MOVED TO APPROVE PURCHASE OF 

AGGREGATE MATERIALS FROM ASPHALT PAVING & SUPPLY IN 
AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $80,000.00 AND FROM CHARTER 
MATERIALS, FLINTSTONE INDUSTRIES AND G&S GRAVEL, EACH 
IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $7,000.00; SECONDED BY 
COUNCILMAN LUZIUS; PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 

 
I. Approval of Amendment One to City Contract No. 07-271, Downer Trail 

Pavement and Utility Reconstruction Project, with Fann Contracting, Inc., 
in the amount of $200,553.72. 

    
 Mr. Nietupski said that this item and the next both deal with reconciling the 

contracts and finalizing them. He said that this first one deals with the 
Downer Trail project, which they had significant issues with utilities. They 
had to redesign the water main to be constructed, as the work was 
ongoing. It was very much a challenge and had extensive time 
requirements, requiring an additional 196 days.  He said that every one of 
the utility companies had to relocate some of their infrastructure and that 
all had an impact on the contractor’s ability to complete the project. 

     
 Councilman Luzius asked what portion of Downer Trail this project 

covered. Mr. Nietupski said that it was from Sierry Peaks to Downer Trail. 
Councilman Luzius said that they are now looking at $1.4 million for 
completion of the Downer Trail. He sees why the Forest Trails people 
were concerned with the taxpayers paying so much for Downer Trail.  He 
asked why the City did this project.  Mr. Nietupski replied that the City was 
obligated under the Development Agreement to construct this section of 
roadway. 

    
 Councilwoman Suttles asked what the length was of the project. 

Mr. Nietupski said that it was a little less than 3,000 feet. Councilwoman 
Suttles asked if the City was not ready for the project. Mr. Nietupski said 
that they do need to do a better job in the future, but it is difficult when 
they do a reconstruction of an older street. They have infrastructure 
underneath that is not readily known. 

   
 Sandy Griffis, Director of the Yavapai County Contractors Association 

(YCCA), 810 E. Sheldon, said that they did have some questions on the 
capital expenditure item. She said that in her capital improvement list it 



Prescott City Council Combined Study Session/ 
Regular Voting Meeting – October 14, 2008                                                   Page 14 
 

showed $160,000 to be spent on Downer Trail and asked if the $92,000 
was coming out of that capital improvement number. 

 
    
 Mayor Wilson said these were unexpected expenditures, and would not 

have been identified in the capital improvement plan. Ms. Griffis asked 
what happens to the CIP money. 

 
 Mr. Nietupski said that there was budgeted money in 2009, which was 

represented in the staff memo, where funding would be provided for the 
cost of the improvement, the water, the sewer and the street.   

 
 Ms. Grifffis said that the project shows $5,925.60 for sewer, but there is 

$40,000.00 shown in the 2009 Sewer CIP, with 50% going toward growth. 
 Mr. Nietupski said that there were funds appropriated for the project for 
sewer, and growth was a necessary part of this project, with Enchanted 
Canyon, Downer 16, and the Preserve at Prescott.   

 
 Ms. Griffis asked if there would be money leftover in the CIP for Downer 

Trail. Mr. Nietupski said that any time they do a project they have a 
budget.  If they exceed on a particular project, the overall fund balance is 
reduced. If they spend less, then the fund balance is impacted in a 
positive fashion. There are a number of projects in an overall fund and it is 
subject to change as the projects come in. He said that they do have 
adequate reserves for this project. 

 
 Ms. Griffis asked why they were obligated in this project. Mr. Nietupski 

said that there was a six-party agreement that made the provision for the 
improvement to Downer Trail, including surface improvements. 

   
 COUNCILWOMAN LOPAS MOVED TO APPROVE AMENDMENT ONE 

TO CITY CONTRACT NO. 07-271, DOWNER TRAIL PAVEMENT AND 
UTILITY RECONSTRUCTION PROJECT, WITH FANN CONTRACTING, 
INC., IN THE AMOUNT OF $200,553.72; SECONDED BY 
COUNCILMAN LAMERSON; PASSED 4-2 WITH COUNCILWOMAN 
SUTTLES AND COUNCILMAN LUZIUS CASTING THE DISSENTING 
VOTES. 

 
J. Approval of Amendment Three to Contract No. 07-089, Iron Springs Road 

Improvement Project, with Fann Contracting, Inc., in the amount of 
$194,387.84. 

       
  Mr. Nietupski said that the City did achieve a remarkable result on this 

project, although it was expensive. They spent a lot of effort to make 
things go smoothly and they had additional expenses with additional 
paving, and extension of a sewer line west of Williamson Valley Road.  He 



Prescott City Council Combined Study Session/ 
Regular Voting Meeting – October 14, 2008                                                   Page 15 
 

said that this item is the final amendment to finalize the as-built quantities. 
He said that for a long time there was a cloud regarding Qwest 
involvement in previous amendments. He said that they have received, 
and Legal is reviewing, a waiver of claims and if it is found to be in good 
order, they will have no future risks or exposure for this project. 

   
  Councilwoman Suttles said that they have had three different contract 

overrides on the Iron Springs Road project; the City decided to pave a 
parking lot, traffic control changes and then the last one the City wanted 
additional paving. She asked if there was a reason why two out of the 
three were not part of the original bid when it went out. Mr. Nietupski said 
that the additional paving was required when they extended the sewer to 
the west, as required by the County. The sewer extension was determine 
necessary after the project was awarded, after inquiries of neighbors and 
an analysis of the system showed it was not working good.   

    
  Councilwoman Suttles said that she knows it was a big project and it had 

to be bid a few times. She appreciated the presentation done a few weeks 
ago, but she still thinks it could have been done better. She understood 
that it was not Fann that did any more than what the City asked of him, 
but each time something like this comes forward, they need to do better.   

     
  Councilman Luzius said that Mr. Nietupkski had provided him a copy of 

the agenda memo dated 10/3/06 when they approved the contract, and at 
that time a citizen got up and made the statement that sometimes 
contractors will bid low and depend on amendments to make their profit.  
He said that he was not saying that is what Fann did, but there were only 
two entities that bid on the project, and it went to Fann because of a 
$600,000 difference.   

    
  Mr. Nietupski reminded the Council that they bid the project three different 

times. When the City receives a bid, it is at a unit price contract, and this 
had 255 different items. Each contract has the opportunity to provide what 
his costs will be to compare the bids. It does not provide the end amount; 
the end amount is the result when the work is accomplished.  He said that 
to say that had the City awarded to the other bidder (which legally it could 
not do) and suggest that it would have been a lower contract in the end, is 
not a reasonable statement. 

    
  Gary Hudder, representing Asphalt Paving & Supply (the other bidder), 

clarified that when they enter into projects the size of Iron Springs, there 
are many unforeseen things. There are substantial engineering issues 
and it is very frustrating for contractors as well as the City engineering 
staff and Council members. Specific to Councilman Luzius’s comments, 
when change orders are submitted of this magnitude and there are unit 
cost items, he would not want there to be a concept that there are 



Prescott City Council Combined Study Session/ 
Regular Voting Meeting – October 14, 2008                                                   Page 16 
 

contractors pocketing funds. Work is additional and that costs them 
money. They are beholden to a certain profit/overhead and once they tack 
on the understood profit/overhead, they cannot manage the project for 
less than that. They would not enter into a guaranteed not to exceed 
amount on the Iron Springs Road project. As the unit quantities change, 
the overall cost of the project will change. 

    
  Councilman Luzius thanked Mr. Hudder for his candor and coming 

forward. He said that it was not his intent to say anyone was pocketing 
funds, but a citizen had come to him, who is very knowledgeable on 
contracts, to say it can happen. He said that some of the members of the 
Council are getting tired of cost overruns with the economy being the way 
it is and the City is looked on as having deep pockets. 

   
  Mr. Hudder said that they are doing the work on Copper Basin and at any 

given time they will do the project they said they will do at the unit costs 
involved, but as the project starts changing, the dollars start changing. 

    
  Councilman Lamerson said that he lives directly on Copper Basin and he 

appreciates the hard work being done there. It has been a mess for 30 
years, and that infrastructure is old and miserable, and they cannot see 
under the dirt. He appreciated Mr. Hudder coming forward and defending 
his competitor and the situation, and said it was an honorable thing to do. 
  

    
  Mr. Norwood clarified that after the September 30 workshop, he and 

Mr. Nietupski met and they are going to do a better job on identifying the 
projects in the future. When they are doing a residential street that does 
not have utility issues, they do not see these cost overruns. When they 
get into the older streets such as Park Avenue, Mt. Vernon, they will have 
these same issues. They will build in contingencies to the contract, but to 
think there won’t be changes is unrealistic. Councilwoman Suttles said 
that she thinks they are getting to where they need to be. Councilman 
Luzius told Mr. Nietupski that it was nothing personal; he does a great job. 

    
  COUNCILMAN LAMERSON MOVED TO APPROVE AMENDMENT 

THREE TO CONTRACT NO. 07-089, IRON SPRINGS ROAD 
IMPROVEMENT PROJECT, WITH FANN CONTRACTING, INC., IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $194,387.84; SECONDED BY COUNCILWOMAN LOPAS; 
PASSED 4-2 WITH COUNCILWOMAN SUTTLES AND COUNCILMAN 
LUZIUS CASTING THE DISSENTING VOTES. 

 
 K. Approval of reimbursement to Granite Dells Estates Properties, Inc., for 

expenses for construction of the Airport Zone 18” Second Feed and 12” 
Water Main Project in an amount not to exceed $1,691,846.40. 

   



Prescott City Council Combined Study Session/ 
Regular Voting Meeting – October 14, 2008                                                   Page 17 
 
  Mr. Nietupski reviewed this project, noting that it was also a unit-cost 

contract. Staff’s recommendation is for a five percent buffer on the 
amount of the contract award which would only be authorized upon City 
Manager approval, should there be a justifiable reason. It is included so 
the amount is “not to exceed” but if a change is more than that amount, it 
would have to come back before Council. He said that this project is 
requirement of the Development Agreement with Granite Dells Estates. 

   
  Councilman Luzius said that he understands this is part of the pre-

annexation agreement with Fann and he supports it. 
    
  Councilman Bell said that he thinks they should note that the bid is about 

$1 million under the budget. Mr. Nietupski said that was correct; the 
budget was $2.75 million, the engineer’s estimate was $2.25 million and 
the low bid of $1.579 million from Asphalt Paving & Supply has been 
confirmed. 

 
  Mayor Wilson asked what the schedule was for the project.  Mr. Nietupski 

said that the work will start in November with an anticipated completion in 
March of 2009. 

    
  COUNCILMAN LUZIUS MOVED TO APPROVE REIMBURSEMENT TO 

GRANITE DELLS ESTATES PROPERTIES, INC., FOR EXPENSES 
FOR CONSTRUCTION OF THE AIRPORT ZONE 18” SECOND FEED 
AND 12” WATER MAIN PROJECT IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXEED 
$1,691,846.40; SECONDED BY COUNCILMAN LAMERSON; PASSED 
UNANIMOUSLY. 

 
L.  Approval of the Minutes of the Prescott City Council Joint Study 

Session/Special Meeting of September 16, 2008, the Regular Voting 
Meeting of September 23, 2008, the Joint Special Meeting/Workshop of 
September 30, 2008 and the Joint Workshop with Prescott Valley Town 
Council of October 1, 2008. 

   
 COUNCILWOMAN SUTTLES MOVED TO APPROVE THE MINUTES 

OF THE PRESCOTT CITY COUNCIL JOINT STUDY SESSION/ 
SPECIAL MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 16, 2008, THE REGULAR 
VOTING MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 23, 2008, THE JOINT SPECIAL 
MEETING/WORKSHOP OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2008 AND THE JOINT 
WORKSHOP WITH PRESCOTT VALLEY TOWN COUNCIL OF 
OCTOBER 1, 2008; SECONDED BY COUNCILMAN BELL; PASSED 
UNANIMOUSLY. 

 
 
 



Prescott City Council Combined Study Session/ 
Regular Voting Meeting – October 14, 2008                                                   Page 18 
 

 
 

V.  ADJOURNMENT 
    
 There being no further business to be discussion, the Combined Study 

Session/Regular Voting Meeting of October 14, 2008, adjourned at 5:26 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      JACK D. WILSON, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
ELIZABETH A. BURKE, City Clerk 
 
 

CERTIFICATION 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing minutes are a true and correct copy of the minutes of 
the Combined Study Session/Regular Voting Meeting of the City Council of the City of 
Prescott, Arizona held on the 14th day of October, 2008. I further certify the meeting 
was duly called and held and that a quorum was present. 
 
Dated this ____ day of ___________________, 2008. 
 
 AFFIX 
       CITY SEAL  
      _____________________________________  

     ELIZABETH A. BURKE, City Clerk 
 
 
 


